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Glantywi is a fascinating, 2 ½ storey, stone built farmhouse, dating from the early-16th century and was altered by extending in the early-17th century to form an ‘L’ shape plan. This provided a central stair and entry plan with access to kitchen on left and hall/parlour to right. The present house forms a symmetrical, south façade of 3-bays, with central entry and flanking windows.  A family history website ‘Family Search: Community Trees’, which indicates approximate birth dates of Welsh Nobility and Gentry shows occupation of the site of Glantywi, at Lanegwad, from about 1400 when Lleucu, the daughter of Gwallter lived there. Other family dates shown here are, 1500 , 1530 and 1570, indicating the site of a significant high status into the period of the surviving building. Its position, close by the navigable river Towy and within reach of Carmarthen, make it an appropriate place, ideal for trade and commerce.
The early-16th century part of the house to the east may have been a 2 storey parlour cross-wing to an earlier hall (now demolished). It has a rectangular plan, aligned north to south, and was formerly sub-divided by a post and panel partition, into a narrow inner-room and a larger south room, which has a lateral ground-floor fireplace (blocked) to the west. In the early 19th century the space was rearranged, a fireplace was inserted at the north gable-end, and the partition removed. Both the three ground and first-floor (one removed) transverse ceiling-beams have medium chamfers with broach stops and ‘ogee’ mouldings to joists. The gabled roof once had three trusses (one removed when altered).These high, arched collar-trusses have three trenched side-purlins and a ridge-purlin, and use the ceiling-beams as tie-beams and provide space for an attic-floor. At some time after the 17th century kitchen unit was added, the south end gable and a truss were removed, and the south façade roof was made continuous to provide symmetry.  At this time a later truss and hip-truss were inserted. There may have been a stair, either against the south wall, where joists are plastered over, or in a projection by the lateral fireplace. The present stair here gives access to the cellar under and beneath the Later-parlour.
The early 17th century kitchen unit to the west contains the main entrance doorway, a lobby and dog-leg stair with a kitchen to left, beyond a stud & plaster partition. The kitchen has a large end fireplace, formerly with timber lintel (replaced) and bread oven. There are two ceiling-beams with curved fillet stops all with plain joists.  The heated chamber over has ‘ogee’ stops to ceiling-beams and an attic above of 3 bays. The trusses are oak mortised and pegged, with high, straight collars, which use the ceiling-beams as tie-beams and provide space for an attic-floor. They have three trenched side-purlins and a ridge-purlin. The dog-leg stair rises to the attic-floor with square newels, moulded hand-rail and turned balusters.  

An adjacent building, lying parallel, to the north, is a late-17th century, detached, 2-storey stone-built, slate-roofed, dower-house/bake-house. It has a central entry with flanking windows and a large end fireplace with timber lintel and evidence for a former bread oven. The ground-floor may have been sub-divided, into a kitchen/hall and an inner-room, although no partition survives. A lean-to has been added to the north in the 19th century. The first-floor is supported by three roughly chamfered ceiling-beams which have diagonal stops and plain rectangular joists.  A modern replacement stair provides access to first-floor via a mezzanine landing with window. It also has an external first-floor end entry, via a stone stair and stone arch. The external stair indicates the first-floor was used for storage (apples stored recently), or for farm workers accommodation. The 4-bay, high collar-truss roof has an unusual mortised and pegged strut to the base of each truss, which spreads the load on to both inner and outer wall-plate. The trusses have two pairs of staggered butt-purlins and a ridge-purlin. The lower purlin is set horizontally, and the rafters are nailed to the purlins. 

Comment
The main farmhouse is an example of a developed 17th century plan, utilising the early-16th century block, which was rearranged internally. The buildings layout works well as a unit, having the necessary rooms, hall/parlour, kitchen main entrance and stair. Its external roof and façade were soon made symmetrical, and in the early-19th century the later-parlour wing was added. 
The interpretation of the early-16th century unit is difficult as it has no surviving stair or kitchen and appears to consist of a narrow inner-room and a large south hall/parlour room, with blocked lateral fireplace, and a possible original entrance (blocked) in the south wall. The blocking has a chamfer and stopped lintel over, and the internal line appears to extend to the floor, for a doorway rather than a window. The external render obscures evidence. This unit was probably originally  a parlour-wing, added to a former hall-house structure either, adjoining to the south, entered via the blocked doorway, relating to the line of the garden wall, or to the east where the later parlour now stands with internal access. Evidence from the family history website indicates that people were living here from the 1400s, perhaps in a former hall-house. 

The late-17th century detached dower-house/bake-house, close to the house and well is a rare survival of a type, seen more commonly in Merionethshire.

A dendrochronological study of the building’s timbers would hopefully find precise felling dates, which would be of great value in understanding its development and others in the Carmarthenshire area. 

Visited, Geoff Ward, 25/08/11.
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